





As SWT's computing equipmert exparnded, the reed for computing persornel
alsc exparded. Mr. Arvel L. Schulle was hired or September 16, 1968, to take
over the computer operation duties. And on August 1, 1969, Mr. Alistair
H. (Scotty) Cowe was hired to assist Ellis as computer programmer.

The J. C. Kellam building served as the nrext site of the admiristrative
computer center when it was completed irn 1969. The 1401 was retired (returned
to IBM), and the 360 was moved in September, 1969, tc the first floor of J.C.
Kellam (the 360 itself was moved by IBM; the rest of the admiristrative
computer support equipmert was moved ir Cowe's 1962 Chevrolet pickup: thanks,
Scotty).

Immediately after the move, ir October, 1969, Mr. Richard V. Cruz was hired
as second shift operatcr; firally there was erough computinrg activity to
require two full shifts of computer operation. Schulle corntinued as first
shift operatocr.

Of course, when the 1401 left, so too did the teachirg of SPS in BA3320.
Mrs. Hastedt thern switched tc RPG (Repcrt Program Gererator) on the 360 ir
that ccurse.

It should be roted that the IBM computers used durirg this period contaired
nro more storage capacity nror were faster or more versatile thar the
microcomputers which are row located ir mary leocatiors throughocut the
Southwest Texas campus.

In 1967, the Departmert of Mathematics acquired a Urivac Athera, an
obsclete guidarce computer for the cld Titar I missile system, from the Air
Foerce through the auspices of President Lyrndor B. Jehnsor. Althcugh this
Athera had origirally beer scheduled to gc to a Uriversity ir Califernia, SWT
President James H. (Jim) McCrocklin called the White Hocuse and asked President
Johrsor to send it to SWT irstead. He did. The Athera was acquired for
snippirg costs and was assembled by Dr. Herry N. McEwer, Professocr of
Mathematics ard Computer Scierce, and Mr. David E. (Dave) Hufferd, ar
electrical ergireer hired by the departmert to mairtair the Athenra. In
additien, Mr. Marcus M. Muirhead was hired to serve as half-time ccmputer
center director ard half-time Computer Sciernce faculty member, He served
urtil September, 1971, whern Mr. Johr I, Prewitt was hired te replace him.

The Athera was a huge (11 1/2 tor) computer which was very nolsy because it
had tc have its own gererator to prcoduce 400 hz power ard its own air
conditiornirg urit to keep it cool enough to operate. The Athera was assembled
ir the Laurel Hall computer certer where it shared space with the 1401.

The Athera was a very interesting machire ir 1its owr right. It was the
first large-scale, all solid state computer ever built. It had limited use as
a Titar I guidarce computer (1961-19562), But it was used by NASA at
Vandenburg Air Force Base and at Cape Kerredy for greound guidance of the early
Comm3at Corpcratiorn commurication satellites (Trarsit, Tyres, Echeo). This
service exterded from 1962 urtil about 1970. The Atherna did rot actually
commuricate with the satellite. It guided the Thor booster te get the
delivery vehicle free of the ground. Whern the booster stage broke away,
on-board computers guided the satellite into corbit.
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Ar interestirg prcblem associated with the Athera corcerred writirg to the
magretic storage drum. The Athera had 256 24-bit words of core memory and 8K
17-bit words of drum memory. Programs were entered or the drum manually, then
executed ir Rur mode. The drum could be read, but rot writter, at Rur time.
Unforturately, this prohibited the writing of self-modifying code; 1i.e.,
creatinrg a loop. Thus, onre of Hufferd and Muirhead's first chores, tc turn
the Athera irto a relatively practical academic computer, was to add four
hardwired irstructiors to the irstruction set to allow writes to the drum.

Another problem concerred output. The only humar-readable output device
was a 10-key Remirgtor addirg machire with mechanical firgers which were
activated to strike the appropriate keys to produce output. Communication
with the Athera really improved when Hufferd and Muirhead rigged the Athera to
produce output on an ASR 35 Teletype.

Ir 1968, academic computirg was ernharced by a single termiral tied to the
Uriversity of Texas Computatior Center. Agair, problems were encountered.
Muirhead cellaborated with the University of Texas Computation Center staff to
write the software that would allow our termiral to commurnicate cover a
telephone lire to the CDC 6400 at the Uriversity of Texas. But occasiorally,
for ro apparert reason, the communicaticn scftware would crash. One day when
a crash occurred, Muirhead, on impulse, picked up the phore ard said, "Hello."
After a pause, the operator said, meekly, "You sure do have some furry sigrals
or the phore lire."” The cperator, curicus about the sigrals orn the phone
lire, would patch ir arnd say 'hello'. The 6400 thought the sigral came from
cur termiral, but it could rot interpret that sigral, so it terminrated the
cornection.

In the Fall semester, 1969, the Department of Mathematics rerted ar IBM
1130 miricomputer which could rur Assembly Larguage ard Fortrar programs. In
addition, the IBM 1130 was conrected to the CDC 6400/6600 at the Uriversity of
Texas sc¢ that more exotic, rumber-crunchirg programs could be rur. Other
problems arcose. One right, William (Bill) Pattorn, a student operator, called
Muirhead at home to report that the 1130 was down. Muirhead told Patton to
call IBM for service, but Pattor irsisted that Muirhead come tc the computer
certer. Wher he arrived, Muirhead discovered that someone had dropped a wad
of bubble gum inrto a box of prirter paper. The gum was trarnsported, with the
paper, irtc the printer. Muirhead arnd Pattor worked lorng arnd hard to remove
the gun from the printer. Alas, they were firally forced to call IBM to
restore the prirter to service.

Computing budgets were very tight irn those days also. It was common
practice at the end of each day for a student operator toc collect all of the
punched cards lyirg orn tables or ir the trash, lcad them ir the card reader,
and, under control of an assembly larguage program, direct unpunched cards to
an alterrate card reader output stack. Thus, urused cards could be recycled.
Ore day Muirhead remarked to a particularly gullible studert that it would be
nice to have a program to separate those urused cards into separate stacks
based on the location of the clipped correr. After lorg hours porirg over the
assembly language marual, the studert was somewhat irdigrart to learn that
computers pay no attention to clipped corrers.
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After the 1401 and the 360 were removed, the IBM 1130 and the Univac Athenra
shared space in the basement of Laurel Hall just across the street from a
popular girls' sunbathing area. In those days, beirg a Computer Science
student had certair targible fringe benrefits.

Encouraged by McCrocklin, the Department of Mathematics offered its first
Computer Science course (Fortran programming) in the Sprirng semester of 1968.
This course ir Fortrarn programninrg was designed by McEwern ard taught by
Muirhead- and Hufferd. Each student purchased a set of pre-purched cards
designed especially for exercises inr the textbook (a CDC card kit). For each
exercise, the student would select the appropriate cards, assemble them into a
program, and turr them ir to the irstructer who would ther send all of these
card decks to Dallas on the bus for processing by a computer there. Computer
printouts would be returred irn the same way. McEwer is certairly not the
appropriate person to approach with complaints about turraround time. (As an
aside, it was roticed that prirtouts, sent first class, took two days to get
to San Marcos. The card decks, sert bulk rate, orly took ore day. After
requesting that prirtouts be returred with the cards, crne day turraround was
achieved., IH 35 was arn urusual but effective commurication link.)

The Athera served the department well as a teachirg tecol for machire
language programmirg and for computer organizaticor until 1971. Ir 1972, it
was placed on the surplus property list and sold to McEwer ard Dr. Grady
G. Early, Director of Computer Science. Parts of the Athera still serve as
concrete models of core memory and drun memory devices. Incidentally, McEwen
and Early were lorg ir the good graces of ar admiristratiorn which was not
completely sure that they had not acquired a Titan I missile to complement the
Athenra.

Computer Science as a miror for the Bachelor of Science degree was proposed
in 1967, approved ir 1968, ard first appeared ir the Uriversity catalog of
1969-1970. The curriculum censisted of severn courses: Math 2308, 2318, 2328,
3303, 3318, 3328, 3338, and required the calculus as a pre-reguisite. This
curriculum certairly reflected the thern prevalert bias toward scientific
computirg.

These courses were gradually irntroduced into the curriculum as follows:

Cour se Irstructor Semester Enrcllmert
2308 Huf ferd Spring 1968 yp
Muirhead 23
2318 Muirhead Fall 1968 15
2328 McEwen Sprirg 1969 27
3328 Sawey Sprirg 1969 21
3318 McEwen Sprirg 1970 13
3308 Muirhead Fall 1970 33
3338 Hibbs Fall 1970 15

The first computer scierce studerts thus were mostly Mathematics majors who
chose to miror ir Cocmputer Scierce. But there were scme chemistry, physiecs,
and biclogy majors in the group.
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These first course offerings were treated in a relatively cavalier fashion.
Math 2308 was used, as has been noted, to teach Fortrar using a card kit in
Sprirg, 1968. The rext Fall, the only subject taught was machire language
programming ard orgarnizatiorn on the Athera. Some studerts took the course as
Math 2308; cthers, who already had credit for 2308, sigred up for 2318. 1In
Spring, 1969, the teletype to U.T. was operatioral, and in Fall, 1969, the
1130 was available. At that point, the material for each course began to
stabilize; at least, insofar as stability ir Computer Science is possible.

Ir late 1972, the IBM 1130 was replaced with a PDP-11/20 manufactured bf
Digital Equipment Corporatior (DEC). Prewitt supervised the installation of
the PDP-11/20 in 112 BAM (row Lelard Derrick Hall).

Durirg the Spring semester of 1973, Ms. Judy Malkir was hired as a
temporary replacemert for Prewitt, Then, ir the Fall of 1973, Mr. Robert
J. (Bob) Goss, our presenrt Director of Computirg services took over as
Academic Computer Center Director and part-time faculty member.

On Decenber 23, 1973, ar historic milestone -was reached. The first twe
Computer Science graduates, Mr. David Wayre Korrnfuehrer ard Mr. Jesse
P. Garcia, received the Bachelor of Science degree at the School of Science
graduation exercises.

The first Bachelor of Business Admiristration graduate was Mr, Ron Carlisle
who graduated ir August, 1974.

In the early 1970's, Computer Scierce, and computirg ir gereral,
experienced the begirrirgs of arn explosive growth which has rot yet abated.

Ir 1974, because of the large growth ir errollment, the Uriversity decided
to purchase a larger computer, ard to combire Administrative Data Processing
and Academic Computirg Activities. After carefully considering proposals from
Digital Equipmert Corporation (DEC), Xerox, Horeywell, National Cash Register
(NCR) and Burroughs, the Uriversity agreed to purchase a DEC System 10
(delivered ir 1975), a machine which, after several upgrades, still serves the
ADP needs of the Uriversity, iritially from the first flocor of the library,
now from the third floor.

Alsc in 1974, McEwern was selected by Irterim President Jerome C. (Jack)
Cates to serve as our first Director of Computing Services., He filled this
pesition urtil September 1, 1977 wher Goss bacame full-time Director (but
still teaching ore Compu' 2r Scierce course per year. Wner G(Goss became
director of all of the University's computing activities, Mr. Raul R. (RR)
Redriguez became half-time Academic Computer Center Directer, half-time system
analyst. He held this dual positior until April 1978 wher Mr. Darry E. (Dan)
Harris, an SWT graduate with a Master of Science ir Cocmputer Science, became
full-time Academic Computer Center Director, a positiorn which he currently
heolds.

Also, ir 1971, Dr, Marvin A. Johnstorn was hired by Presidert Billy Mac
Jores to organize a Management Informatior Systems (MIS) program withir the
School of Busiress. Ir May 1973, the MIS degree opticn was approved by the
Coordiratirg Board. The program was administered and taught by Johnston and
Dr. James R. (Rardy) Cecok, Chairman, Department of Accourntirg and Computer
Information Systems (CIS). Ir 1979, the MIS rame was dropped ir favor of CIS
to more closely identify the preogram with the tool whose use was beirg taught.
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From 1971 to 1976, Computer Science was guided by Dr. James L. Poirot, thenr
from 1976 to 1980, by Early after Poirot became faculty member, then Chairman
of the Departmerit of Computer Scierce at North Texas State Uriversity. During
Early's leave of absence and durinrg 1981-1982, Mr. Wilbor P, Davis served
first as Chairmar ‘of the Computer Science Committee, ther as the first
Director of Computer Science. On September 1, 1982, Early replaced Davis in
that position.

In the late 1970's, the University recogrized the reed for more computinrg
power. Thus, plans were begun to buy arother computer system to be housed in
a rew building.

MCS thus serves the dual furction of providing office and laboratory space
for the Department of Mathematlics ard Computer Scierce as well as equipmert
ard office space for the Academic Computer Center. Our rew DEC 1091, assorted
support furctiors, and Computer center admiristrative offices occupy the first
floor of MCS. The secord floor houses the PDP-11/20, a Datapoirt 5500,
various micro-computers, a Computer Science electrorics lab, ard a student
termirnal room cortairirg 64 termirals. The third ard fourth floors house the
Department of Mathematics and Computer Science.

Studert irterest ir computirg formed . the actual basis for the explosive
growth ir computing activity. We have progressed from ar initial errollmenrt
of about 20 Computer Scierce mirors ir 1968, to 360 Computer Sciernce majors,
170 Computer Scierce minors, 977 CIS majors, and 326 would-be CIS mirors
durirg the Fall semester, 1982. It is somewhat difficult teo determire the
rumber of Computer Scierce mirers ir those first years because they were
actually classified as mathematics mirors until Fall, 1973, wher Ccmputer
Sciernce was givern a separate, identifyirg ccde. Also, there is rot really a
CIS miror; some Schocl of Business studerts just fill ir a mircr code so that
the blark will not be - well - blark.

The real irdicatiorn of student interest ir computirg is giver by the
followirg tables which show the growth ir the rumber of majors, mirors, lower
divisior semester credit hour (LD3SCH) gereration, upper division semester
credit hour (UPSCH) generation, and graduate semester credit hour (GSCH)
gereratior., The figures speak for themselves for the most part. One carnot
help but rote, however, that the orly decrease ir Computer Science majors from
ore year to the rext occurred in 1980-1981 wher the authcr was on leave of
absence from SWT.
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Computer Science
Ernrollment Data 1974-1982

Year Majors Minors LDSCH UDSCH GSCH Total SCH

1973 46 79 702 141 21 864
1974 67 71 783 357 21 1161
1975 93 T4 909 276 24 1209
1976 110 69 960 306 24 1280
1977 129 77 1101 309 36 1446
1978 184 85 1353 320 36 1709
1979 225 70 1473 478 33 1984
1980 205 63 1260 646 60 1966
1981 254 79 1401 736 39 2176
1982 360 170 1929 835 69 2833

Computer Information Systems
Enrollment Data 1974-1982

Year Majors Mirors LDSCH UDSCH -GSCH Total SCH

1974 133 N/A 516 270 57 843
1975 130 N/A 405 315 114 834
1976 124 N/A 564 h23 109 1095
1977 169 N/A 891 525 39 1455
1978 227 N/A 951 630 54 1635
1979 h23 N/A 1137 838 21 1986
1980 518 N/A 1137 1080 72 2289
1981 589 NA 1272 951 - 2223
1982 977 N/A 4059 1305 27 5391

Student interest is also reflected ir the various student crgarizatiors.

The Computer Science Association (CSA) was formed by Computer Science
minors in the Spring of 1970 with nire members. As an outgrowth of the CS4,
several members applied for a local chapter of Epsilon Delta Pi, a Computer
Science horor society. Or March 4, 1974, they received a charter for the Zeta
chapter of Epsilon Delta Pi, In 1978, a studert chapter of the Data
Processirg Maragement Association (DPMA) , chartered through the Austin DPMA
chapter, was formed to serve the reeds of CIS majors. In the Spring of 1982,
Southwest Texas became arn irstitutioral member of the Asscciation for
Computirg Machinery (ACM).
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As equipment procurement proceeded, the development of academic programs
kept pace. The rell call of rew computer programs is impressive.

9/7/1967 BS with a minor in CS
6/8/1973 BS with a major in C3
6/8/1973 BBA with a major in MIS
(charged to CIS on 7/20/81)

2/7/1974 MA/MS with a minor in CS
5/13/1974 Second Teaching Field in C5
3/9/1979 MA/MS with a major in CS
2/28/1983 First Teaching Field in CS

New courses accompanried rew programs urtil, from ar iritial offerirg of
three Computer Science courses in 19683, we now have:

22 undergraduate and 6 graduate Computer Science courses
14 undergraduate and Y4 graduate CIS courses

as well as numerous courses in other departments who have begur to apply the
power of electroric computers to their own special computirg reeds. Irdeed,

mcre courses and more programs are in various stages of consideration from
irdividual departments to the Coordirating Board.

The currenrt programs are:

Computer Science
--sciertific applicatiors programmirg
-~computer system analysis
--teacher certificationr
--BS, MA, MS

Computer Information Systems
~-busiress application programming
—-—-managemant -information system analysis

--BBA, MBA
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MCS began to take shape in the Summer of 1981, when groundbreaking took
place, From their vantage poirt ir Derrick Hall, the Computer Science and
Computer Irnformatiorn Systems faculty supervised day to day corstruction,
Firally, durirg the weeks of September 27 to October 8, 1982, the Department
of Mathematics and Computer Science occupied the top two floors of the
building.

On HNovember 10, 1982, the new DEC 1091 was delivered. Irstallatiorn was
begun on November 22, 1982, by Harris, Rodriguez, and Mr. Bill Welch, a DEC
ergireer. Installaticn and testing was completed ir January, 1982. Arnd the
Academic Computer Center moved from Derrick Hall to MCS durirg December,
1982--January, 1983.

On Sunday, February 20, 1983, Dr. James Wade became the first CS faculty
member to use a terminal (MIME - 2A) in his office (561 MCS) by conrection to
the DEC-10 through the Micom port selector rather than using the stairs or an
acoustic coupler to commuricate with the DEC-10. Wade, Sellars, McCabe, Borm,
and Davis were the first five CS faculty members to have termirals wired to
the DEC-10.

The rew facility, the Mathematics/Computer Science building, serves the
needs of both the Department of Mathematics and Computer Science and of the
Academic Computer Center., The building itself containrs abcocut 38,500 square
feet of usable space., Room rumbers in MCS are in the 200's for the ground
floor, followed by the 300's, 400's, ard 500's on successive floors. This
numbering scheme was chosen for compatability with Derrick Hall to which MC5
is physically conrected.
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The space utilizatior inr MCS is as Follows (square fcot figures are

approximate):

2,825 square
1,640 square
810 square
1,025 square
540 square
1,455 square
700 square
520 square
550 square

Secornd Flcor (Mair equipment)

feet - Stairs, elevator, corridors

feet - Restrooms, janitor, mechanical

feet - Miscellanreous

feet - DEC=10

feet - Dispatch area

feet - Ready Room (Student area)

feet - Admiristrative offices ard reception
feet - Graduate student offices

feet - Storage

Third Floor (Primary student area)

2,465 square
785 square
1,145 square
1,630 square
570 square
635 square
1,560 square
350 square
350 square

Fourth Floor

2,525 square
775 square
720 square

3,200 square
250 square

1,500 square

280 square
240 square

v

Fifth Floor

2,280 square
790 square
800 square

4,815 square
Y40 square
200 square

feet - Stairs, elevator, corridors

feet - Restrooms, jaritor, mecharical
feet - Miscellaneous

feet - Termiral room

feet - Electronics Lab

feet - Offices

feet - Miri and micro computer rooms
feet - Graphics lab

feet - Keypunch room

(Mathematics/Computer Science Departmert)

feet - Stairs, elevator, corridors

feet - Restrocms, Jaritor, mecharical

feet - Miscellaneous

feet - 23 offices

feet - Conference room

feet - Departmertal administrative offices

ard reception
feet - Lounge
feet - Secure storage

(Mathematics/Computer Scierce Department)

feet - Stairs, elevator, corridors
feet - Restrooms, janitor, mecharnical
feet - Miscellarecus

feet - 36 offices

feet - 2 faculty electronics labs
feet -~ Conference rocm
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Ir summary, our present enviable state is partly due to arn enlightened
admiristration, but more to the sacrifice and enthusiastic efforts of such
faculty arnd staff members as:

Mrs. Hastedt and Dr. McEwen, who started it all;

Mr.

WI

Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Ms.

Dr.l
Dr.

Mr.

Hufferd, who kept the Athera runring;
Muirhead, who was the first Academic Computer Center director;

Prewitt, Ms. Malkir, Mr. Goss, Mr. Rodriguez, and Mr. Harris,
who kept (and keep) the Academic Computer Center functioning
during times of tight budgets ard unforseen computing demands;

Jarrett, who orgarized ADP and now serves as operations manager;

Ellis ard Mr. Cowe, who were our first;ADP programners and who,
alorg with

Lee M. Phelps, Mr. Robert L. (Bob) Kerley, Mr. Donald D. (Dor)
Volz, Mr. Johr Loyd, Mr. Michael (Mike)} Dubois, Ms. Jeanrne-
Michelle Davis, and Ms, Ruby Welch, successfully effected our
mammoth trarsitiorn from a card-oriented ADP system to our
current on-line system;

Margery E. Castellaw and Ms, Josie G. Islas, who kept both
academic ard administrative data entry operations moving
smoothly ard efficertly;

Poirot, Dr. Early, and Mr, Davis, who guided Computer Scierce;

Johrston ard Dr. Cook, who guided CIS;

Cruz and Mr. Schulle, who operated the machires;

countless student operators, laboratory assistarts and student

programmers who bore the brunt of student discortent;

and to many other faculty ard ADP staff who have worked so hard

to advarnce strong academic programs and reliable computing.

It is to all of these individuals that this building should be dedicated.
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However, we should not forget the equipment which has served us so well:

Urivac Athena
IBM 407, 602
IBM 1401
. IBM 360/20
IBM 1130
PDP-11/20
DEC 10 (the first one)
Datapeint 5500 (used by CIS)

DEC 10 (the second one)

and various teletypes, card readers, ADM-1's, ADM-2's, DECwriters, MIME-Z2A's,
GIGI's, ACT-5's, ete. via which our students attempt to control that

wonderful, exasperating computing enginre,.

Note: The MCS dedication ceremonies are scheduled for April 15, 1983.
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